
Brooklyn Board of Education
Special Meeting Agenda

Virtual & BMS Auditorium

September 28, 2022
7:00PM

Please click the link HERE to join the webinar:

Passcode:  496798
Webinar ID:  854 0118 3806

One tap mobile : US: +16469313860,,85401183806#  or +13017158592,,85401183806#
Telephone:  US: +1 646 931 3860  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 309 205 3325  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 646 558 8656

Mission: The Brooklyn Schools will foster a drive for learning within each student to reach his/her greatest potential. To
achieve this mission, the school will continually improve its educational programs and services to meet this community's
expectations for a quality education for all.

To support public participation the documents will be posted on the  Town of Brooklyn Website as well as the  Brooklyn
Public Schools Website.  You are encouraged to send questions or comments to  buell@brooklynschools.org prior to the
meeting.

1. Attendance, Establishment of a Quorum, Call to Order

2. Public Comment

3. Approval of Minutes
a. August 24, 2022

4. Correspondence and Communication
a. EASTCONN presentation by Executive Director Eric Protolis
b. Administrator Presentation of District Advancement Plan
c. NFA Brooklyn Town Profile SY22
d. Thank you letter - Brooklyn PTO
e. Thank you letter - Mortlake Fire Department
f. Thank you letter - Brooklyn Cub Scouts Pack 44

5. Administrative Reports
a. Brooklyn Enrollment Report
b. FY23 Financial Reports
c. Budget Transfer Request
d. Data Dashboard
e. Brooklyn’s Best

6. Board of Education Committee Reports

7. Board Representatives to other Committees

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/85401183806?pwd=ZjZ3TStSUnlacXNQcytuQVF6SkdJZz09
https://www.brooklynct.org/
http://www.brooklynschools.org/
http://www.brooklynschools.org/
mailto:buell@brooklynschools.org


8. Old Business
a. Policies:  2nd  Reading

i. P6111(a):  School Calendar
ii. 9321.2 (a):  Bylaws of the Board
iii. P5145.511(a):  Sexual Abuse Prevention and Education Program
iv. P5141.4(a):  Reporting of Child Abuse Neglect and Sexual Assault
v. P5141.213(a):  Opioid Overdose Prevention

vi. P6140(a):  Curriculum
vii. P6172.6(a):  Distance Education
viii. P7230.2(a):  Indoor Air Quality
ix. P4113.12:  Minimum Duty-Free Lunch Periods for Teachers
x. P5144.4(a):  Physical Exercise and Discipline of Students
xi. P5113.2 (a):  Truancy

b. Climate Survey Questions/Answers

9. New Business
a. Policies:  1st Reading

i. P1250:  School Visitors
ii. P1330:  Use of School Facilities

b. 8th grade end of school year trip
c. Discussion about HVAC School Construction Grant
d. Update on the School Business Manager Vacancy
e. Legislative Updates:
f. SBAC Scores

10. Public Comment

11. Executive Session
a. Superintendent Goals
b. Brooklyn Public School Safety Plans

12. Adjournment

BOE September 28, 2022 Agenda - Page 2



The Board of Education
Town of Brooklyn
119 Gorman Road

Brooklyn, CT 06234

Mae Lyons, Board Chair Melissa Perkins-Banas, Vice-Chair
Justin Phaiah, Secretary Kayla Burgess
Isaias Sostre Rick Ives

Mission: The Brooklyn Schools will foster a drive for learning within each student to reach his/her
greatest potential. To achieve this mission, the school will continually improve its educational programs

and services to meet this community's expectations for a quality education for all.

The Brooklyn Board of Education held their monthly meeting in the Central Office Community
Room and virtually on August 24, 2022 via Zoom. In attendance were Mrs. Lyons, Dr.
Perkins-Banas, Mr. Phaiah, Mrs. Burgess, Mr. Ives, and Mr. Sostre (arrived at 7:03 p.m.). Mrs.
Buell, Superintendent, was also present.

To support public participation the documents will be posted on the  Town of Brooklyn Website
as well as the  Brooklyn Public Schools Website.You are encouraged to send questions or
comments to  buell@brooklynschools.org prior to the meeting.

1. Attendance, Establishment of a Quorum, Call to Order

Mrs. Lyons stated that five Board members were present: Melissa Perkins-Banas, Justin
Phaiah, Kayla Burgess, Rick Ives and herself, Mae Lyons.
Quorum established. Mrs. Lyons called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Public Comment

a. No Public Comment

Mr. Sostre arrived at 7:03 p.m.

3. Approval of Minutes

a. June 22, 2022 BOE Regular Meeting Minutes

Motion to approve the Regular Meeting Minutes for June 22, 2022.
(Perkins-Banas/Burgess)
No discussion
Vote Count: 6, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

4. Correspondence and Communication

a. RFQ vs. RFP Discussion Presentation by Jimmy Graef and Grodsky

mailto:buell@brooklynschools.org


Mrs. Buell stated that Mr. Graef, Director of Facilities, wanted to bring forward
information for the Board as they prepare/consider applying for the HVAC
construction project.

Mr. Graef stated that he asked Joe Conti and Rob Boissonnault from Grodsky and
Company, the company that is completing the boiler project, if they would give an
estimate on a district wide air conditioning project they would like to have
installed using State funding. Mr. Graef felt that they would need more than a
Request for Proposal (RFP), which is the basic right to bid on any one project. Mr.
Graef stated he felt we needed a Team approach. Mr. Graef asked Mr. Conti and
Mr. Boissonnault if they would provide information on the Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) process. The following is the presentation they provided for
the Board:

State Grant and Town - Requirements: State Grant - up to 78% reimbursement for
Brooklyn

● Improving indoor air quality
● Cost savings
● Minimal environmental impact
● 3-bidder requirement
● Maximize scope of work to fully utilize the grant

Typically there are two paths.
Path #1 - Plan and Spec delivery method:

● Engineering firm to design/specify…might take 9-12 months
● Contractors bid the package - lowest price wins

Path #2 - Request for Proposal (RFP) delivery method:
● Design/bid directly with contractors
● Hundreds of engineering hours to properly design/price
● Bigger risk-higher margins-higher pricing-uncertainty
● Lowest bid wins? Doesn’t make sense in this case
● Difficult to levelize the bids (apples to oranges?)

Sensible Approach - Best Qualified
Path #3 - Request for Qualification (RFQ)

● Go out to bid (minimum 3-bidders)
● Bidders give not to exceed qualified budget
● Bidders show their best design thoughts and approach
● Bidders show resume of team members
● Bidders show their qualifications and ability to perform
● Choose the best design and most qualified
● Discuss life cycle cost, no the lowest upfront cost
● Customer becomes part of the final design team

Customer-Contractor (Team approach)
Design/Build: with a team collaboration

● Gross maximum price approach
● Open book/fixed margin approach



● Savings is returned to owner
There are several focused approaches that can be used for a successful
project implementation, with customer confidence of a fixed budget not to
exceed the number.

Request for Qualifications (RFQ) - Process:
● Each contractor provides company history, background, qualification of

the team members and ability to perform.
● Discuss previous experience using a collaborative team approach
● Provide overall project design
● Identify your proposed method of project approach
● Examples: (design/bild, fixed labor rates, fixed margins, open book,

customer choice for major design decisions, gross maximum price,
monthly reporting on budget and schedule, etc.)

Benefits of team Approach - Brooklyn gets a customized project:
● Get creative with Energy Conservation Measures (energy savings).
● Design for Employee Productivity enhancements.
● Discuss a means to reduce carbon footprint
● Properly design for indoor Air Quality (UVC germicidal lights, high

efficiency filtration, fresh air sequencing during pandemic, etc)
● Ease of use (simplified controls for energy conservation)
● Overall benefits - reduced absenteeism, higher level of alertness, better

test scores, etc.

Summary - Request for Qualifications (RFQ):
● These projects require many hours of upfront engineering, customization

to Brooklyn’s needs, significant coordination of trades and multiple
options that need to be vetted along the way

● We don’t want the cheapest up-front price. That only motivates the
Contractor to cut corners. We all want the best performance and the best
life cycle cost.

● It only makes sense to use an RFQ process to choose your partner first.
Collaborate together from the initial design to the final commissioning.

Mrs. Buell thanked Mr. Conti and Mr. Boissonnault for the presentation and also
thanked Mr. Graef for having them come in. She stated that they are still waiting
for the State to open up the application. She has also had conversations with the
Town ARP/ESSER Committee and received information that ARP/ESSER funds
may not be allowed to use as the “local portion,” which Mrs.
Buell believed that they were. Mrs. Buell has asked for clarification and she stated
it does meet the qualifications of the grant.

There was discussion amongst the Board. Other towns are asking for clarification
as well. Mrs. Buell has not received clarification as of yet and will continue to ask
for the clarification.

Mrs. Buell stated that there is no vote needed. She would like the Board to know
that Mr. Graef believes that the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) process would



be better than using the Request for Proposal (RFP) process when we apply for
the grant.

5. Administrative Reports

a. Brooklyn Enrollment Projection

Mrs. Buell discussed the enrollment projection report. As of August 19, 2022,
Brooklyn Elementary school enrollment is at 534 students; Brooklyn Middle
school enrollment is 354 students; High school enrollment is 395 students. The
total of enrollment is 1,302, which includes registrations that are not entered into
the system as of yet. Mrs. Buell stated that enrollment has not been this high since
prior to the pandemic.

b. FY22 End of Year Budget Transfer Request

Mrs. Buell discussed the FY22 end of year budget transfer request to transfer line
items totaling $665,104.20.

Motion to transfer $665,104.20 as outlined on the FY22 End of Year Budget
Transfer Request to balance out negative budget lines.
(Ives/Perkins-Banas)
No discussion
Vote Count: 6, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

c. FY22 End of Year Budget Report

Mrs. Buell discussed the FY22 end of year budget report. We have unexpended
$44,654.62.

Mrs. Buell will notify the Board of Selectman and the Board of Finance that the
school will NOT be expending $44,654.62 from fiscal year 2022.

d. Brooklyn’s Best

BES
● New Hires - We have had multiple members of our hiring committee this

summer to interview potential new staff. Our committee is confident that
these new staff members will be a positive addition to our team!

● Professional Development- Our new teaching staff attended professional
development with our consultant from Eastconn to provide them an
overview of our ELA units. It was well attended and there was a lot of
learning that took place!

● Custodial Work- We want to give a huge shout out to our custodial staff
for their hard work making our school ready for the first day of school!

● New Registrations - Jill Hardacker has enrolled almost 90 new students
this summer! This has been a huge untaking as we have also shifted to a
new student database program.



BMS
● Thank you to all of the staff members that participated in hiring

committees after school hours
● We are excited to have the following new staff members added to our

school community:
○ Adam Bender- Assistant Principal
○ Ashley Paille- Art Teacher
○ Ryne Rewers- Health/PE Teacher

● Our Math teachers participated in 2 days of Professional Development for
the implementation of our new program (Illustrative Math). We also
enjoyed having an Eastford teacher collaborating with the training.

● We appreciate that many teachers have been in over the summer preparing
their classrooms for the start of the school year.

● Thank you to the custodial staff and the secretarial staff for all of the hard
work during the summer getting our school ready for an amazing start to
the year

● We are excited that Baribeau Lawn and Tree and A Block Away
Construction have been donating their time and equipment to install our
first stations for the Community Fitness Course. We will be having a
ribbon-cutting ceremony on September 28th to thank our families for their
support of our fundraising efforts and local groups that funded specific
stations.

Mrs. Buell wanted to also thank Brooklyn staff who have engaged in many hours
of hiring, planning, and welcoming our new students and staff. This includes her
own secretary, HR, Payroll, Finance Office, administrators, teachers, and
paraprofessionals.

Mrs. Buell thanked the bus company who has completed the bus routes, they are
posted to the website. There is a slight change this year as high school students
will be picked up a little later and transfer to the bus they need to get to the correct
high school. Transfers will be supervised bybus company employees at BMS and
the bus garage.

Mrs. Buell would like to thank Gabe Bryant, IT Director, who worked with a
part-time summer employee to get us ready for the new school year. There have
been a few wrinkles thrown into the summer plans when we have had lightning
strikes take out or phone and other equipment’

Furnace Project: the work has begun at BMS. We have the new water heater
installed with final hookups and testing to be completed soon/scheduled soon.
The old furnace has been removed and the new furnace is on sight.

Mrs. Buell shared pictures of the furnace project, water heater replacement.
Mrs. Buell stated that she has coordinated with the First Selectman Tanner to
allow Trooper Ambrose to work in a satellite office at BMS. BMS administration
has set up an office for him there. Mrs. Buell would like to thank Trooper
Ambrose for his diligence in ensuring our schools are safe by attending the Safety



Seminar and for coordinating a visit by Trooper First Class Craig Brezniak of the
Emergency Services - Tactical Unit First Selectman, Fire Marshall, Fire Chief,
Administration, and Director of Facilities for conducting a safety assessment and
providing guidance to us.

6. Board of Education Committee Reports

None

7. Board Representatives to Other Committees

Dr. Perkins-Banas stated that Woodstock Academy is asking Woodstock athletes to pay to
play. Everyone is dealing with budgetary issues.

Dr. Perkins-Banas stated that the Brooklyn Parks and Recreation Commission
interviewed a number of highly qualified candidates for the Director position. Interviews
were completed last week and three final candidates were to the First Selectman, Austin
Tanner, to review. Mr. Tanner will make the final decision.

Mr. Phaiah stated that EASTCONN has hired a new Director, Eric Protulis and he had
started in his new position July 16, 2022.

8. Old Business
a. Update ARP/ESSER Town Projects

Mrs. Buell gave an update on the phones. The funding was approved for the
replacement of the phone system. We are currently working with our liability
carrier regarding a claim for the damage caused by the lightning strike. This
includes the phones, multiple lines, damage to some servers and hardware. It will
also include service calls and overtime for staff who have had to respond,
including “firewatch” hourly.

Mrs. Buell gave an update on HVAC. She stated that the school’s request is still in
the packet for consideration. The Department of Administrative Services has not
yet released the grant for these funds and Mrs. Buell is seeking clarification of if
the Town ESSER funds can be used to cover the “local portion” of the project.

9. New Business

a. CT School Security Survey Summary

Mrs. Buell stated that the State surveyed schools to see about SRO’s and about
55% responded to the survey:

● 66% had SRO’s
● 56% had them at all levels, 38% had them at High School, 1% Middle

School, 3% Elementary School
● 89% do NOT have armed security, 11% do
● 41% armed at all levels, 41% High School, 0% Middle School, 16%

Elementary School



b. Brooklyn’s Local School Wellness Policy Triennial Assessment & Scorecard

Mrs. Buell discussed the findings of Brooklyn's local school wellness policy
triennial assessment and scorecard. She stated that we do have a wellness policy,
not advertising or pushing the wellness policy as much as the State would like us
to do. There are areas of improvement, having a wellness committee and
promoting wellness for the school, students, staff and community. There are
wellness activities with the fitness course, fitness initiatives in the district and
have more advertising.

c. Substitute Pay

Mrs. Buell stated that there were some challenges last year with getting
substitutes, not horrible. There were still more illnesses. There were many
substitutes that would come in, but just not enough. Mrs. Buell stated that she
does not know if pay would have made a difference. Mrs. Buell is not sure if the
substitute rates need to be changed, start the year and see how it is. It is something
they can look at in the future.

Mrs. Buell stated that the minimum wage increased from $13.00/hour to
$14.00/hour on July 1, 2022. We are currently paying substitute teachers:

● $115.00/day ($16.42/hour for 7 hour day certified)
● $100.00/day (14.29/hour for 7 hour day non-certified)

(motion proposed and approved on 05/26/2021; effective 08/01/2021)

Regarding other schools in the area, Lori gathered the following information:
Killingly - approved rate for 22-23 school year:

● $150/day(with bachelor’s)
● $175/day certification (disclaimer included in the posting states “standard

rates are $100 per day for BA degree & $115 per day for Certified
teachers”

Plainfield: website posting - substitute teachers $150-$175/day
Putnam: daily/per diem substitute teachers; $100/day
Thompson: $90/day
Woodstock: $120/day (retired teachers); $110/day certified & non-certified

d. Climate Survey

Mrs. Buell discussed some of the challenges and the results of the climate survey
for the Board to review and they will discuss next month. She will be posting the
results on the schools’ website in the next day or two. Mrs. Buell stated that
building the school climate and increasing communication will be a focus as part
of the school advancement plan and school culture.

e. SBAC Data

Mrs. Buell stated the data has been slowly released. This will be shared once it is
available to the public. Preliminary data is not great.



2019 2021 2022
● Overall ELA scores went from   63.6%    49.8%    49.0% level 3-4
● Overall MA scores ent from       47.9%    31.5%    36.8%
● Overall Sci scores went from     70.0%     X 57.0%
● We know the following were factors that impacted our ability to make

progress: Attendance (6-13% students were absent monthly; 80-250 staff
absences in a month or 6-18% of ur staff absent monthly), Math
curriculum, ELA we are working on the Science of Reading work present
by the state.

f. New Staff Members

● Adam Bender - BMS Vice Principal
● Sara Howley - Para Clerk
● Christine Blake - Financial Assistant
● Adrew Nichols - Custodian
● Janet Johnson - BES Special Education Teacher
● Heather Garosshen - BES 1st Grade Teacher
● Emily Rainville - BES 4th Grade Teacher
● Samantha Felice - BES 1st Grade Teacher
● Cecilia Stallone - BES 2nd Grade Teacher
● Valerie Minarik - BES 4th Grade Teacher
● Kathy Shekleton - BES 3rd Grade Teacher
● Rachel Cardaci - Speech Pathologist
● Jillian Galipeau - Speech Pathologist
● Ashley Paille - BMS Art Teacher
● Ryne Rewers - BMS PE Teacher
● Sheena Martin - BES 3rd Grade

g. Advancement Plan

Mrs. Buell stated that there is an initial draft that will require further editing. She
stated that we are focused on what data can be collected to track student growth.
Mrs. Buell will bring the advancement plan to the September Board of Education
meeting.

h. Parental Request to Pay Tuition

Mrs. Buell stated that at this time she would like to review a privileged
communication from our attorney regarding this matter and would ask that the
Board makes a decision on this matter once you have more information. There is
an executive session and would like to add it to executive session

Motion to add reviewing the privileged communication from the Board’s attorney
to the executive session and table discussion of the request to pay tuition until the
Board exits the executive session.
(Burgess/Phaiah)
No discussion
Vote Count: 6, 0



Unanimous vote to approve

i. Policies:  1st Reading

Mrs. Buell stated that the following policies are a first reading for the Board to
review for the next meeting with any comments/suggestions.

i. P6111(a):  School Calendar
ii. 9321.2 (a):  Bylaws of the Board

iii. P5145.511(a):  Sexual Abuse Prevention and Education Program
iv. P5141.4(a):  Reporting of Child Abuse Neglect and Sexual Assault
v. P5141.213(a):  Opioid Overdose Prevention

vi. P6140(a):  Curriculum
vii. P6172.6(a):  Distance Education

viii. P7230.2(a):  Indoor Air Quality
ix. P4113.12:  Minimum Duty-Free Lunch Periods for Teachers
x. P5144.4(a):  Physical Exercise and Discipline of Students

xi. P5113.2 (a):  Truancy

j. Continuity of Services Plan/COVID Guidance

Mrs. Buell stated that the Continuity of Services Plan/COVID Guidance is on the
District Website: Announcements/COVID Resources.

● Students and staff should stay home if they feel sick.
● Face coverings are encouraged and permitted by anyone who wishes to

wear one but is not required. Staff are not expected to enforce mask
wearing.

● Masks are required after isolation: days 6-10 when returning to school.
● Students and staff are required to follow good hand hygiene by washing or

disinfecting hands frequently.
● Anyone with symptoms will contact the school nurse. They will be sent

home if they have COVID symptoms as determined by the school nurse.
● Daily notifications will no longer be made by the school and we will

follow the CDC guidelines for case rates.
● Students who wear masks all day long may request or be offered a mask

break
● If COVID positive, individuals must quarantine 5 days and may return

once fever free 24 hours, symptoms are substantially better, and must wear
a mask through day 10.

● We will maximize airflow by opening windows to increase circulation.
● Staff and students will be permitted to have increased social distancing or

other mitigation strategies as necessary.

10. Public Comment

Amy Landis, Fairway Drive: She knows there is an executive session. She would like to
know if they will be coming out to discuss after the executive session. She has been a
resident of Brooklyn for over 17 years. Rick Ives is now a Board of Education member



and he has repeatedly stated that one of the great things about Brooklyn is our ability to
have school choice, semi-private Woodstock Academy, semi-private NFA, Ellis Tech,
Killingly High School. She believes it should include Marinapolis and the Pomfret
Schools, local private schools. She stated how Mrs. Buell stated how high school
numbers keep fluctuating, families are moving into town and get to choose their high
school. We have families that have lived here for 17 years and they do not have the
ability to choose where their children get to go for high school and pay taxes for 17 years.
A year ago, it was $14,000.00 plus to go to Woodstock Academy, but cannot use that
money to pay for where our children want to go because we do not have our own public
high school.

Diane Wimmer, Wauregan drive: Mrs. Wimmer keeps hearing about Woodstock being
semi-private and NFA being semi-private. She stated that if you look on the State of CT
website, there are statutes for the school districts that do not have high schools. She stated
that Woodstock Academy is one, NFA is another, and there is another one that she could
not remember the name of. She stated that there are certain towns that are allocated to
those schools by statute, not by tradition, and specifically states they are public schools
for our town by statute. She also stated that the statute goes further by stating that public
monies cannot be used for private schools. Mrs. Wimmer stated that there is a lot of
information and anyone can go onto the State of CT website and read the statutes. She
stated the language is that they are public schools for those towns that do not have their
own high school. She knows the Board will be talking about it in executive session as
well as having the Board attorneys looking at it. Parents need to look at the State statutes
to see it for themselves and Mrs. Wimmer stated that there is misinformation being
spread through the Town.

11. Executive Session

a. Superintendent Goals/Evaluation
b. Discussion of attorney-client privileged comunication

Dr. Perkins-Banas made a motion to enter into executive session at 8:37 p.m. to
discuss the superintendent’s goals as well as to discuss an attorney-client
privileged communication. We would invite the superintendent.
(Perkins-Banas/Phaiah)
No discussion
Vote Count: 6, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

Mr. Ives made a motion to come out of executive session at 9:14 p.m.
(Ives/Perkins-Banas)
No discussion
Vote Count: 6, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

Ms. Burgess made a motion based on the current State statute which prohibits
public funds to be used to pay private high school tuition, I make a motion to
deny any request for the Board of Education to pay private school tuitions.
(Burgess/Phaiah)



No discussion
Vote Count: 6, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

12. Adjournment

Motion to adjourn at 9:15 p.m.
(Phaiah/Perkins-Banas)
No Discussion
Vote Count: 6, 0
Unanimous vote to approve

Respectfully Submitted,

Donn� L . DiBenede��

Donna L. DiBenedetto
Board Clerk

____________________________________ _______________
Justin Phaiah, Board of Education Secretary Date



Proud of the
Brooklyn Public Schools

2022-23

District and School Advancement Plans
Patricia L. Buell, Brooklyn Superintendent

Barbara-Jean Toth, Brooklyn Director of Special Education
Paula Graef, Brooklyn Elementary Principal

Mark Weaver, Assistant Principal Brooklyn Elementary School

Heather Tamsin, Brooklyn Middle School Principal
Adam Bender, Assistant Principal Brooklyn Middle School



Brooklyn Public Schools
DISTRICT ADVANCEMENT PLAN

2022-23

District Goals:  The Brooklyn Public Schools’ theory of action begins with the use of a well planned and articulated curriculum that will
provide solid tier I instruction to all students.  Instructional coaching will support high yield, effective teaching strategies as teachers
implement their curriculum.  The improvement of SRBI and Tier II and Tier III interventions will lead to improved progress monitoring and
adjustment to focus on student outcomes.  Both BES and BMS have articulated a pacing guide to include an assessment calendar that will
be monitored through data teams.  Data team meetings will be conducted at all grade levels and content areas to measure student growth.
Student outcomes will improve, adjustments to the curriculum, pacing and interventions in subsequent years will be based on careful
analysis of consistent curriculum implementation and accountability.

Student Academic Achievement Goal: Students will demonstrate growth in the areas of reading, mathematics and science across all grade
levels.
During the 2022-2023 school year, Brooklyn Schools will continue with the full implementation of Reading, Writing and Phonics Workshop in grades
K-8. The schools assessment calendars and pacing guides have become common practice and are utilized with fidelity. The pacing guides, paired with
our assessment calendars, drive our Tiered instruction with stopping points along the way to assess student academic growth. Both BES and BMS
have committed to creating time for teams to meet regularly to analyze, discuss and formulate responses to both behavioral and academic data. These
meetings include general education staff, special education staff and support staff.  Instructional Coaches are working with staff to refine practice and
provide resources for student success in grades K-8, in response to student data and professional development needs.

Action/Strategies Indicators for/ Evidence of  Success Timeline

Student Achievement: Reading
BES:

● Restructured data team meetings to embed
calibration of student work to identify
strengths and weaknesses of students and
areas to strategically address the needs of
learners through the SRBI process

● Implement explicit foundational reading
instruction that is differentiated and targeted
in all grades

BMS:
● Improvements in the data collection and

meeting process along with documentation in
order to inform instruction in the FLEX
intervention model.

○ Lexile Level
○ Star Reading

Reading
BES:
● DRA goals are set for each grade level based on 2022 spring data.

The following percentage of students will meet the end of the year
DRA benchmark at the appropriate level:

● 80% of Kindergarten students will meet the DRA goal of 4.
● 74% of Grade 1 students will meet the DRA  goal of 18

(Spring 64%)
● 55% of Grade 2 students will meet the DRA goal of 28 (Spring

36%)
● 80% of Grade 3 students will meet the DRA goal of 38 (Spring

70%)
● 70% of the Grade 4 students will meet the DRA goal of 40

(Spring 52%)
BMS:

● Grade level performance on STAR will achieve at least 80%
of students with an SGP of 35 or higher

● Percent of Students with SGP of 35 (or higher) for the

Ongoing: DATA
meetings after each
SRBI cycle (≅ every
6-8 weeks) based on
the building
assessment calendar.



Brooklyn Public Schools
DISTRICT ADVANCEMENT PLAN

2022-23

○ 2021-22 SBAC Results
○ Interim Assessment Blocks (7 per

grade level)
○ Freckle
○ IXL

2021-22 School year
22-23 Grade 5
22-23 Grade 6 56%
22-23 Grade 7 89%
22-23 Grade 8 69%

Special Education Support:
Improved quality IEPs through Professional
Development, coaching and collaboration.

Measure usage and effectiveness of the following
specialized programs: Orton Gillingham, Co-Writer,
Snap and Read, Read Naturally Live, and
TeachTown.

Improved special education referral process through
general education and special education collaboration
within the SRBI / MTSS process.

90% of IEPs will demonstrate alignment between goals and
objectives, common core standards and progress monitoring
demonstrated through monthly IEP audits and coaching.

- Teachers will create measurable goals and objectives
- Teachers will document progress monitoring data

appropriately.

Monitor monthly student rosters for  frequency and durations, track
reading levels and growth, and social skills progress.

90% of referrals will have followed the SRBI /MTSS process with
appropriate intervention data and documentation.

Monthly IEP Audit

August 23 & 24 PD-
CT SEDS

Weekly special
education staff
meetings/training.

On going lesson
observations

Monthly data team
meetings.

Student Achievement: Mathematics
BES:
● Conclude the review and pilot of a mathematics

program
● Create a list of mathematical vocabulary and

terminology that includes preferred words and
alternatives (equation, number sentence) for
each grade level

● Math fact fluency and calculation assessments
administered at all grade-levels to identify
strengths and weaknesses of students and
areas to strategically address the needs of
learners through the SRBI process

Mathematics
BES:
● Present a proposal to adopt a new mathematics program for the

23/24 school year by December 2022
● All grade levels K-4 will compile a comprehensive list of

mathematical vocabulary terms is created and provided for each
grade level

● Math fact fluency goals are to be set for each grade level, based
on Spring, 2022 fluency data.
● 75% of K students will meet the math fluency goal, based on

grade-level expectations
● 75% of Grade 1 students will meet the math fluency goal,

based on grade-level expectations
● 70% of Grade 2 students will meet the math fluency goal,

based on grade-level expectations (60% in spring, 2022)
● 80% of Grade 3 students will meet the math fluency goal,

September-
December
Math programs will be
piloted and reviewed
this school year (IM;
iReady).

Ongoing: DATA
meetings after each
SRBI cycle (≅ every
6-8 weeks) based on
the building
assessment calendar



Brooklyn Public Schools
DISTRICT ADVANCEMENT PLAN

2022-23

BMS:
● Full implementation of a new math program

grades 5-8
● Improvements in the data collection process

and documentation in order to inform
instruction in the FLEX intervention model.

○ Checkpoint Formative assessments
○ End of Unit Summative Assessments
○ Star Math
○ 2021-22 SBAC Results
○ Freckle
○ IXL
○ Moby Max

based on grade-level expectations (72% in spring, 2022)
● 55% of Grade 4 students will meet the math fluency goal,

based on grade-level expectations (33% in spring, 2022)

BMS:
● All grade levels 5-8 following new curriculum with fidelity
● All grade levels successfully complete all units according to the

recommended curriculum pacing
● Formative and summative assessments are administered and data

is analyzed in data meetings
● Grade level performance on STAR will achieve at least 80% of

students with and SGP of 35 or higher
● Percent of Students with SGP of 35 (or higher) for the   2021-22

School year.
22-23 Grade 5
22-23 Grade 6 69%
22-23 Grade 7 79%
22-23 Grade 8 91%

Science:
BES:

● Development of STEAM Pacing Guide which
includes a progression of the NGSS
standards

BMS:
● Improvements in the data collection process

and documentation in order to inform
instruction

○ Implementation of 4 Interim
Assessment Blocks

○ Development of unit assessments
○ GIZMO
○ Science Tech Book

BES:
● A minimum of 85% of all students (Pre-K - 4) will receive

grade-level appropriate instruction, based on the progression
of the NGSS standards identified in the STEAM pacing guide.

BMS:
● Successful administration of 4 Interim assessment blocks
● Developing a baseline data goal in order to set future growth

goals
● Grade 7+8 Science teachers safety trained

Ongoing pacing
development

BMS: (IAB)
● November

21st
● January 30th
● April 17th
● June 5th



Brooklyn Public Schools
DISTRICT ADVANCEMENT PLAN

2022-23

Social Emotional Achievement Goal: Increase in Tier 1 and Tier 2 Social-Emotional

Students will demonstrate growth

Action/Strategies Indicators for/ Evidence of  Success Timeline

Social Emotional Learning:
BES:
● Implementation of a data-driven SRBI process to

accurately identify students and appropriate
supports to meet the individual needs

○ Collaborative team meetings will identify the
needs of students’ social-emotional skills

● Social Worker grade level lessons
● Track and celebrate student and staff

attendance
● Implementation of a Tier 1 Positive Behavior

Support system that includes recognition of
positive, pro-social behaviors and schoolwide
social emotional instruction

BMS
● Staff will use PowerSchool to track student

discipline data.
● DESSA-mini Universal Screen 3 times per

year
○ Full DESSA as identified through the

DESSA-mini
● DEESA  Targeted Tier 2/3 Intervention

Lessons
● Mind-Up/Second Step Curriculum Tier 1

Instruction
● Weekly Agenda Raffle, Chromebook

spotcheck
● Good Cookie Award recognizing student

behavior monthly

BES:
Reduce the amount of Behavioral Referrals by 15% (from 329 to 280)

Observations and learning walks indicate that
○ all students and staff use common PBIS language (give me 5,

etc)
○ Praise and rewards are used to motivate students and develop

a growth mindset approach
● Staff, student and family climate surveys indicate students and

staff treat one another with respect

BMS
● Observations and learning walks indicate that

○ Praise and reward are used to motivate students and
develop a growth mindset approach

● Staff, student and family climate surveys indicate students
and staff treat one another with respect.

● Promote positive student behaviors through regular
monitoring and incentives

BES
Weekly BMT
meetings



Brooklyn Public Schools
DISTRICT ADVANCEMENT PLAN

2022-23

● Lions Club Award recognizing student effort
Q1, Q2, Q3

● Academic Achievement Awards
○ Honors
○ High Honors
○ NJSS 7&8
○ Graduate awards
○

● Powerschool discipline data and DESSA
Data examined in SEL Data Team meetings

● Track and celebrate student and staff
attendance

● Start With Hello Week to support SEL needs

Communication and Parental Involvement Goal: Increase Home-School Communication

Action/Strategies Indicators for/ Evidence of  Success Timeline



Brooklyn Public Schools
DISTRICT ADVANCEMENT PLAN

2022-23

Communication and Parental Involvement:
BES:

● Develop a positive perception of BES through
direct publication to showcase successes

○ Podcast
○ PowerSchool Portal
○ Encourage parent volunteers for

interventions/school-wide activities

BMS:
● Podcasts
● PowerSchool Portal for Progress Reports
● Principal’s Advisory Group
● Grade Level Family Newsletters
● Community Fitness Course Ribbon Cutting

Event
● School Messenger Family Updates
● Google Classroom Guardian communications
● 2 Parent Conference Events
● Yearly drama production
● Band/Chorus Concerts
● Family Engagement Nights

○ 5th Grade Welcome Evening
○ Open House/BBQ
○ Core Academics Nights
○ Related Arts Night
○ Athletics Family Information Nights
○ High School Choice Fair for Grade 8

Families

● Utilization of the Teen Center
○ Summer Activities with Social

Workers prior to the start of school
○ Potential after school collaboration
○ Potential high school leadership

group collaboration

BES:
● Demonstrate a 10% improvement in increased sense of

engagement and communication as measured by the
responses on the Parent School Climate Survey

BMS:
● Principal’s Advisory Meetings will be scheduled quarterly
● Increased sense of Engagement and Communication  as

measured by the responses on the Parent School Climate
Survey

Weekly newsletter
Biweekly Podcast
Ongoing



Brooklyn Public Schools
DISTRICT ADVANCEMENT PLAN

2022-23

Mid Year Update: End of Year Update:



 
 
 

Page 1 
 

  



 
 
 

Page 2 
 

  

PARTNER DISTRICT DATA SETS 
ANNUAL YEAR END REPORT – FINAL 

School Year 2021-22 
September 2021 - June 2022 

 

INTRODUCTION:  This end of the school year report lists key Norwich Free Academy data as aggregate and 
specific town disaggregate sets.  The report begins with basic enrollment information and proceeds to highlight 
key academic, co-curricular, and achievement data points by specific town.  Wherever possible, the sources of 
the data are official state reports:  PSIS, EDSIGHT, ED166 Discipline Report, State TCS, NFA Guidance Profile, 
and the Naviance College Board Testing Center.   

The report also profiles the senior class of this past year: Class of 2022.   

Table of Contents – All Data Sets Disaggregated by Specific Town 
 
I. Enrollment Data Sets Based on PSIS State Reports 
 A. Census Enrollment by Grade and Ethnicity .  .  .  .   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   3 
 B. Special Education Enrollment   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   3 
 C. Free Reduced Lunch Enrollment .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   4 
 D. Homeless Enrollment    .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .     4 
 E. English Learners Enrollment    . . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    4 
 F. Registrations Count    .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   5 
 G. Withdrawals Count  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   5 
 
II. Attendance Data Sets 
 A. ADM/ADA:  Average Daily Membership / Average Daily Attendance   .  .  .  .    6 
 B. Chronic Absenteeism   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   6 
  
III. Academics and Co-Curricular Data Sets  
 A. Honors Designation Based on GPA   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   7 
 B. AP, UCONN and Dual Enrollment Participation  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   7  
 C. Credit Fulfillment Grades by Grade Level  On Track to Graduate  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   8  
 D. Co-Curricular: Honors Program, Honor Society, Athletics/Clubs Participation        9  
 
IV. Class of 2022 Profile 
 A. Scholarships / Awards: Dollar Amounts for Town    .  .   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  10  
 B. Standardized Test PSAT and SAT Data  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .   .  .   .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 10  
 C. Student Outcomes Summary:  Where Did Graduates Go?  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .    11 
 D. Guidance Profile Sheet: Miscellaneous Information  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . .   12 
 E. Guidance Profile Sheet:  List of College Acceptances, AP and Dual Enrolled.  .  . 13        
 F. Post Secondary Schools Attended by Town as Reported by Students .  .  .   .  .  . 14  
 

 



 
 
 

Page 3 
 

  

 
I. ENROLLMENT  DATA SETS 

 

A. NFA Census Enrollment by Grade and Ethnicity:  June 2022 

 
TOWN (All) 

     
TOWN BROOKLYN 

    
               Grade         

 
  Grade         

Ethnicity/Race 9 10 11 12 Total 
 

Ethnicity/Race 9 10 11 12 Total 

Am. Indian/Alaskan 8 10 3 6 27 
 

Black or African 
Am. 0  0  1 

   
0  1 

Asian 34 28 31 36 129 
 

Multi-Cultural 1   1  0 2 
Black or African Am. 83 69 78 93 323 

 
White 1 2 4 1 8 

Hawiian/Pacific Isl. 15 2 2 2 21 
 

Total 2 2 6 1 11 
Hispanic 5 105 116 96 322 

       Multi-Cultural 57 24 22 20 123 
       White 328 247 290 255 1120 
       Total 530 485 542 508 2065 
        
 

 

                      B. Special Education Enrollment:  June 2022 

 

TOWN (All) 
    

TOWN BROOKLYN 
 

         Student 
Count       

  

Student 
Count     

Grade NO YES Total 
  

Grade NO Total 
9 452 78 530 

  
9 2 2 

10 424 61 485 
  

10 2 2 
11 471 71 542 

  
11 6 6 

12 451 57 508 
  

12 1 1 
Total 1798 267 2065 

  
Total 11 11 

  



 
 
 

Page 4 
 

  

 

C. Free Reduced Lunch Enrollment:  June 2022 
 

TOWN (All) 
    

TOWN BROOKLYN 
  

          Student 
Count          

 

Student 
Count        

Grade FREE PAY REDUCED Total 
 

Grade FREE PAY Total 
9 244 254 32 530 

 
9 0  2 2 

10 196 241 48 485 
 

10 0  2 2 
11 222 275 45 542 

 
11 1 5 6 

12 199 269 40 508 
 

12 0  1 1 
Total 861 1039 165 2065 

 
Total 1 10 11 

 
D. Homeless Enrollment: June 2022 

 
TOWN (All) 

    
TOWN BROOKLYN 

 
         Student 

Count       
  

Student Count     
Grade NO YES Total 

  
Grade NO Total 

9 524 6 530 
  

9 2 2 
10 478 7 485 

  
10 2 2 

11 530 12 542 
  

11 6 6 
12 497 11 508 

  
12 1 1 

Total 2029 36 2065 
  

Total 11 11 

 
E. English Learners (EL) Enrollment: June 2022 

 
TOWN (All) 

    
TOWN BROOKLYN 

 
         Student 

Count       
  

Student Count     
Row 

Labels Not EL EL Total 
  

Row Labels Not EL Total 
9 473 57 530 

  
9 2 2 

10 428 57 485 
  

10 2 2 
11 495 47 542 

  
11 6 6 

12 448 60 508 
  

12 1 1 
Total 1844 221 2065 

  
Total 11 11 

 



 
 
 

Page 5 
 

  

 

 

F. Registrations Count During School Year 2021-22 

September 1, 2021 - June 2022 

 

TOWN (All) 
 

TOWN BROOKLYN 

     

Grade 

# of 
Registrations 
after Opening 

 
Grade 

# of 
Registrations 
after Opening 

9 49 
 

9-12 0 
10 50 

 
Total 0 

11 40 
   12 21 
   Total 160 
    

 

 

 

G. Withdrawals Count During School Year 2021-22 

September 1, 2021 - June 2022 

(prior to graduation) 

 

TOWN (All) 
 

TOWN BROOKLYN 

     

Grade 

# of 
Withdrawals 
after Opening 

 
Grade 

# of 
Withdrawals 
after Opening 

9 40 
 

9-12 0 
10 39 

 
Total 0 

11 35 
   12 33 
   Total 147 
    

 

  



 
 
 

Page 6 
 

  

II. ATTENDANCE   DATA SETS 

          
A. ADM  ADA    (Average Daily Membership vs Avg. Daily Attendance) 

     School Year 2021-22 
 

TOWN (All) 
   

TOWN BROOKLYN 
  

         

Grade ADA ADM 
Attendance 

Rate 
 

Grade ADA ADM 
Attendance 

Rate 
9 161.7 176.3 91.7% 

 
9 175.0 181.0 96.7% 

10 159.2 175.3 90.8% 
 

10 160.5 181.0 88.7% 
11 155.6 176.3 88.2% 

 
11 171.8 181.0 94.9% 

12 159.4 179.1 89.0% 
 

12 177.0 181.0 97.8% 
Total 158.9 176.8 89.9% 

 
Total 170.8 181.0 94.4% 

                 

ADM = Average Daily Membership        ADA = Average Daily Attendance 
 

 

B. Chronic Absenteeism Count of Students:  SY2021-22 
(Includes all NFA programs: Data from State DOE) 

 
Chronically Absent: Missing ten percent or greater of the number of days enrolled for any reason. 

 
 

TOWN (All) 
   

TOWN BROOKLYN 
  

         Count of 
Students       

 

Count of 
Students       

Grade 

Not 
Chronic 
Absent 

Chronic 
Absent Total 

 
Grade 

Not 
Chronic 
Absent 

Chronic 
Absent Total 

9 413 117 530 
 

9 2 0 2 
10 360 125 485 

 
10 1 1 2 

11 358 184 542 
 

11 6  0 6 
12 347 161 508 

 
12 1  0 1 

Total 1478 587 2065 
 

Total 10 1 11 
Total % 71.6% 28.4% 

  
Total % 0.5% 0.0% 

  



 
 
 

Page 7 
 

  

III. ACADEMIC Data Set  (Honors, Dual Enrollment, Adv. Placement, UCONN) 

A. Student Honors based on Cumulative GPA as of June 2022 

TOWN (All) 
    

TOWN BROOKLYN 
  

          GPA 
HONORS         

 

GPA 
HONORS       

Grade 
Level 

Highest 
Honors 

High 
Honors   Honors Total 

 

Grade 
Level 

Highest 
Honors Honors Total 

9 144 36 27 207 
 

9 1 1 2 
10 119 29 31 179 

 
10 0  2 2 

11 125 36 37 198 
 

11 6 0 6 
12 113 34 33 180 

 
12 1 0  1 

Total 501 135 128 764 
 

Total 8 3 11 
 

 B. Dual Enrollment, Advanced/Honors, UCONN/AP Participation 
                      DUAL ENROLLMENT (College Credit Awarded) Count of Students: SY2021-22 
 

TOWN (All) 
    

TOWN BROOKLYN 
  

          

  

Dual 
Enrolled NFA 

& College 
Course       

 
  

Dual Enrolled 
NFA & College 

Course     
Grade ECSU TRCC UCONN Total 

 
Grade ECSU UCONN Total 

10 1 12 12 25 
 

11 1 6 7 
11 28 23 199 250 

 
12 1 4 5 

12 86 12 260 358 
 

Total 2 10 12 
Total 115 47 471 633 

      

UCONN and Advanced Placement Semester Class Counts: SY2021-22 

TOWN (All) 
   

TOWN BROOKLYN 
  

  
C l a s s e s   T a k e n  

   
C l a s s e s   T a k e n  

        
 

        

Grade 
Honors/ 

Advanced UCONN/AP Total 
 

Grade 
Honors/ 

Advanced UCONN/AP Total 
9 499  0 499 

 
9 6 0  6 

10 567 12 579 
 

11 14 8 22 
11 316 283 599 

 
12 1 6 7 

12 146 376 522 
 

Total 21 14 35 
Total 1528 671 2199 

      

Highest Honors GPA 3.667+ 
High Honors GPA 3.500+ 
Honors GPA 3.333+ 



 
 
 

Page 8 
 

  

          Class of 2022 
Graduation Requirements 

 C. Credit Fulfillment by GRADE LEVEL  - ON TRACK TO GRADUATE 
 

                                      CREDIT FULFILLMENT Count of Students:  SY2021-22 
 

TOWN (All) 
   

TOWN BROOKLYN 
 

        Student 
Count       

 

Student 
Count     

Class Of 
NOT 
ON 

TRACK 

ON 
TRACK Total 

 

Class Of ON TRACK Total 

2022 27 465 492 
 

2022 1 1 
2023 87 471 558 

 
2023 6 6 

2024 95 390 485 
 

2024 2 2 
2025 98 432 530 

 
2025 2 2 

Total 307 1758 2065 
 

Total 11 11 

 
Credit Fufilled:    Class of  2025 earned    6 or more credits at end of Grade   9  
        Class of 2024 earned   12 or more credits at end of Grade 10 
        Class of 2023 earned   18 or more credits at end of Grade 11 
        Class of 2022 earned   23 or more credits at end of Grade 12 

 
 
  



 
 
 

Page 9 
 

  

 

 D. Co-Curricular Participation School Year 2020-21 Only * 
 Honors Program, Honor Society, Athletics, Clubs, Activities Participation 

 (Count of the # of Students Participating In This School Year Only by Class and Town) 
 
 

 
TOWN BROOKLYN 

    
       Class of           
Group or Team 2021 2022 2023 2024 Total 
Baseball     1   1 
Basketball (B)   1 1 1 3 
Dance Team     1   1 
Fencing 4   4   8 
Football 1       1 
Golf (B)   2   1 3 
Honors Program 
Grade 10   1 4 1 6 
Honors Program 
Grade 11   1 5   6 
Honors Program 
Grade 12   1     1 
Indoor Track (G)     2   2 

National Honor 
Society 1 1     2 
Outdoor Track (G)     2   2 
PlayShop 3       3 
Project Outreach     1   1 
Soccer (B)   2   2 4 
Soccer (G)     3   3 
Spanish Honor 
Society   2     2 
Student Advisory 
Board   2 1   3 
Unified Dance     1   1 
Unified Social Club   2     2 
Writers Ink 1       1 
Total 10 15 26 5 56 

                                                  * School Year 2021-22 not updated as of June 2022 

 



 
 
 

Page 10 
 

  

 

 

IV. CLASS of 2022 PROFILE 

Scholarships – Awards – Test Scores 

 

 A. Scholarships / Awards from Alumni Office  

 

 Town 
Number of 

Scholarships 
& Awards 

Number 
Students 

Total 
Amount 

BROOKLYN 14 2    $  9,745  
Total NFA 489 251  $ 473,545  

 

 

 

B. PSAT SAT Highest Score 

 

Test Takers 
PSAT 

Group 
Average 

SAT 
Group 

Average 

BROOKLYN 1057 1460 
NFA Class of 2022 911 948 

State of 
Connecticut NA 986 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

Page 11 
 

  

 

 

 C.  Student Outcomes Summary by Partner District 

                 (As reported by Class of 2022 students in Naviance) 

“Naviance is a comprehensive college and career readiness software solution that helps 
districts and schools align student strengths and interests to postsecondary goals, improving 
student outcomes and connecting learning to life.”  Over four years, NFA students access the 
Naviance college and career readiness tools.  www.naviance.com 

As students report 

 

TOWN (All) 
  

TOWN BROOKLYN 
 

       

Class of 2022 Outome 

# 
Student

s 

% 
Outcom

e 
 

Class of 2022 Outome # Students 

% 
Outcom

e 
Apprenticeship Program 1 0.2% 

 
College: Bachelor's Degree 1 0.2% 

Career Education or Trade School 1 0.2% 
 

Grand Total 1 0.2% 
College prep school 1 0.2% 

    College: Associate Degree 157 30.4% 
    College: Bachelor's Degree 172 33.3% 
    Employment 66 12.8% 
    Gap or Service Year 2 0.4% 
    I'm not sure. I need guidance 

from my counselor 2 0.4% 
    Military 5 1.0% 
    Other school 1 0.2% 
    Unknown 109 21.1% 
    Grand Total 517 100.0% 
   

  
 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

Page 12 
 

  

D. Guidance Profile Miscellaneous Information  Class of 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 

Page 13 
 

  

E. Advanced Placement, Dual Enrollment and College Acceptance Data

 



 
 
 

Page 14 
 

  

 

F. Colleges Attended Class of 2022: As Reported by Students 

Post Secondary Schools Attended 

 
TOWN BROOKLYN 

College or University Attended 
University of Connecticut 
(Uconn Dental Program) 1 

Grand Total 1 
 

< ----------     END OF REPORT     ---------- > 









Brooklyn Public Schools Enrollment 2022-2023 as of 9/19/2022
BES Grade Level, Sections Pre-K   K First Second Third Fourth Total
PK AM Class 1 16 18 16 20 18 15 103
PK PM Class 1 16 18 15 18 20 20 107
PK AM Class 2 17 17 16 20 20 19 109
PK PM Class 2 15 18 17 19 19 19 107
PK AM Class 3 15 16 20 18 19 88
PK PM Class 3 15

Total in person 94 71 80 97 95 92 534
Homeschooled 0 4 4 2 3 7 20

3
BMS Grade Level, Sections Fifth   Sixth Seventh Eighth Total

17 21 21 21 80
19 20 20 21 80
19 20 21 20 80
19 21 20 19 79
19 20 39

Total in person 93 82 102 81 - - 358
Homeschooled 1 3 4 4 12

High School Students Ninth Tenth Eleventh Twelfth Total
Woodstock Academy 67 42 53 57 219
Killingly High School 21 17 24 34 96
Killingly Ag Science 5 0 3 0 8
Plainfield High School 0 0 1 0 1
Norwich Free Academy 1 2 2 6 11
Ellis Technical High School 9 14 15 18 56
Quinebaug Middle College 3 0 1 1 5
Total by Grade 106 75 99 116 396

OUT OF DISTRICT STUDENTS (not counted in totals above) 17

TOTAL BROOKLYN STUDENT ENROLLMENT PK-21 1305
Total Enrollment Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
2017-18 1314 1314 1311 1304 1310 1312 1311 1318 1319 1320
2018-19 1332 1336 1327 1326 1325 1325 1320 1333 1338 1339
2019-20 1342 1343 1344 1345 1348 1342 COVID last day 3/13/2020
2020-2021 (COVID, In/Opt 
Out) 1260 1242 1243 1246 1245 1227 1230 1244 1251 1251
2021-22 1258.5 1270.5 1275.5 1282.5 1281.5 1280.5 1282.5 1279.5 1281.51283.5
2022-2023 1305

Homeschooled 20-21 32 35 47 32 50 61 61 53 53 53
21-22 19 22
22-23

Sept June
2017-18 1314 1320
2018-19 1332 1339
2019-20 1342 1342
2020-2021* 1260 1251
2021-22 1274 1283.5
2022-2023 1305



Salaries Administration1010.00000.0000.000.51100 $821,699.00 $63,976.88 $191,930.64 $629,768.36 $639,768.73 ($10,000.37) -1.22%
Salaries- Substitute Teachers1010.00000.0000.000.51103 $95,000.00 $419.94 $419.94 $94,580.06 $0.00 $94,580.06 99.56%
Salaries-Substitute Instructio1010.00000.0000.000.51104 $20,000.00 $586.74 $586.74 $19,413.26 $0.00 $19,413.26 97.07%
Salaries-Intern Support Staff1010.00000.0000.000.51105 $0.00 $1,160.25 $1,160.25 ($1,160.25) $0.00 ($1,160.25) 0.00%
Salaries-Support Staff1010.00000.0000.000.51110 $1,128,075.00 $83,453.76 $193,068.13 $935,006.87 $947,818.89 ($12,812.02) -1.14%
Salaries-Teachers1010.00000.0000.000.51111 $5,485,358.00 $420,459.71 $632,648.92 $4,852,709.08 $4,940,557.41 ($87,848.33) -1.60%
Salaries-Instructional Aides1010.00000.0000.000.51112 $1,110,808.00 $52,239.51 $52,239.51 $1,058,568.49 $985,990.46 $72,578.03 6.53%
ESY Teacher1010.00000.0000.000.51119 $5,760.00 $0.00 $5,792.52 ($32.52) $0.00 ($32.52) -0.56%
ESY Paraprofessional1010.00000.0000.000.51129 $17,280.00 $0.00 $16,364.03 $915.97 $0.00 $915.97 5.30%
Salaries-Custodial O/T1010.00000.0000.000.51130 $2,000.00 $212.95 $1,734.94 $265.06 $0.00 $265.06 13.25%
Additional Compensation-Teache1010.00000.0000.000.51151 $53,690.00 $0.00 $0.00 $53,690.00 $0.00 $53,690.00 100.00%
IT Summer Salaries 1010.00000.0000.000.51152 $7,500.00 $836.25 $2,658.75 $4,841.25 $0.00 $4,841.25 64.55%
Cigna health employer 1010.00000.0000.000.52110 $1,774,190.00 $156,427.13 $535,819.74 $1,238,370.26 $1,389,262.16 ($150,891.90) -8.50%
cigna dental employer 1010.00000.0000.000.52115 $104,410.00 $8,202.46 $27,343.92 $77,066.08 $72,016.34 $5,049.74 4.84%
HSA 1010.00000.0000.000.52120 $193,750.00 $68,750.00 $79,895.83 $113,854.17 $80,489.76 $33,364.41 17.22%
Fica/Medicare Employer portion1010.00000.0000.000.52200 $286,086.00 $18,217.95 $34,407.93 $251,678.07 $234,679.16 $16,998.91 5.94%
Pension/Retirement Expenses1010.00000.0000.000.52300 $266,828.00 $0.00 $256,828.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 3.75%
Tuition Reimbursement1010.00000.0000.000.52510 $15,000.00 $3,200.00 $4,799.00 $10,201.00 $0.00 $10,201.00 68.01%
Unemployment 1010.00000.0000.000.52600 $35,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 100.00%
Workers Compensation1010.00000.0000.000.52700 $85,943.00 $21,481.60 $42,963.69 $42,979.31 $42,964.67 $14.64 0.02%
Life Insurance1010.00000.0000.000.52800 $19,293.00 $1,915.89 $6,018.45 $13,274.55 $12,592.79 $681.76 3.53%
Purchased Services1010.00000.0000.000.53000 $0.00 $3,307.50 $3,857.50 ($3,857.50) $0.00 ($3,857.50) 0.00%
Legal Services1010.00000.0000.000.53020 $25,000.00 $7,518.50 $7,518.50 $17,481.50 $12,481.50 $5,000.00 20.00%
Professional Educational Servi1010.00000.0000.000.53200 $189,585.00 $69,632.33 $68,970.19 $120,614.81 $1,484.01 $119,130.80 62.84%
Pupil Services1010.00000.0000.000.53230 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 100.00%
Other Professional Services1010.00000.0000.000.53400 $45,800.00 $446.00 $4,548.00 $41,252.00 $13,292.40 $27,959.60 61.05%
Audit1010.00000.0000.000.53410 $28,465.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $24,465.00 $11,965.00 $12,500.00 43.91%
Technical Services1010.00000.0000.000.53500 $32,800.00 $963.00 $14,005.34 $18,794.66 $9,630.00 $9,164.66 27.94%
Other Technical Services1010.00000.0000.000.53520 $5,475.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,475.00 $0.00 $5,475.00 100.00%
Sports Officials1010.00000.0000.000.53540 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 100.00%
Refuse Removal1010.00000.0000.000.54101 $15,000.00 $999.44 $2,944.21 $12,055.79 $9,163.79 $2,892.00 19.28%
Equipment Repairs1010.00000.0000.000.54300 $22,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $22,000.00 $1,324.00 $20,676.00 93.98%
Building Maintenance1010.00000.0000.000.54301 $40,000.00 $5,010.00 $5,542.50 $34,457.50 $3,786.00 $30,671.50 76.68%
Fire/Security Maintenance1010.00000.0000.000.54302 $16,500.00 $4,840.00 $10,392.64 $6,107.36 $4,760.00 $1,347.36 8.17%
Grounds Maintenance1010.00000.0000.000.54303 $17,000.00 $2,556.38 $2,818.51 $14,181.49 $2,621.30 $11,560.19 68.00%
Technology Related Repairs1010.00000.0000.000.54320 $6,000.00 $0.00 $528.40 $5,471.60 $0.00 $5,471.60 91.19%
Water/Sewer1010.00000.0000.000.54411 $27,836.00 $0.00 $260.00 $27,576.00 $0.00 $27,576.00 99.07%
Rental of Computer Related Equ1010.00000.0000.000.54430 $58,000.00 $3,430.10 $6,854.33 $51,145.67 $33,971.59 $17,174.08 29.61%
Pupil Transportation-Local/Hig1010.00000.0000.000.55100 $781,333.00 $8,606.00 $8,606.00 $772,727.00 $741,195.00 $31,532.00 4.04%
Student Transportation-Spec. E1010.00000.0000.000.55110 $227,424.00 $2,960.00 $2,960.00 $224,464.00 $161,920.00 $62,544.00 27.50%
TRANS. SPECIAL ED - ESY1010.00000.0000.000.55130 $39,661.00 $0.00 $27,556.25 $12,104.75 $0.00 $12,104.75 30.52%
Transportation-Athletics/Field1010.00000.0000.000.55150 $26,400.00 $0.00 $0.00 $26,400.00 $0.00 $26,400.00 100.00%
Property & Liability Insurance1010.00000.0000.000.55200 $74,753.00 $18,686.02 $37,373.96 $37,379.04 $37,377.80 $1.24 0.00%
Communications1010.00000.0000.000.55300 $12,440.00 $1,247.67 $2,214.06 $10,225.94 $10,622.18 ($396.24) -3.19%
Postage1010.00000.0000.000.55301 $3,300.00 $51.98 $2,234.06 $1,065.94 $246.24 $819.70 24.84%
Advertising1010.00000.0000.000.55400 $6,950.00 $0.00 $7,063.92 ($113.92) $0.00 ($113.92) -1.64%
Tuition-High School1010.00000.0000.000.55600 $4,682,351.00 $249,369.79 $1,034,997.41 $3,647,353.59 $2,107,513.09 $1,539,840.50 32.89%
Tuition-Vo Ag1010.00000.0000.000.55610 $28,960.00 $0.00 $0.00 $28,960.00 $0.00 $28,960.00 100.00%
Tuition-Spec. Ed Private1010.00000.0000.000.55630 $921,151.00 $69,047.00 $82,047.00 $839,104.00 $482,882.95 $356,221.05 38.67%
Tuition-Spec. Ed-In State LEA1010.00000.0000.000.55640 $892,148.00 $97,608.53 $208,328.50 $683,819.50 $466,758.09 $217,061.41 24.33%

Brooklyn Board of Education

Account Number

FY23 Budget Expense Summary by Object 9/1/2022From Date:
Fiscal Year:   2022-2023

9/30/2022To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask
Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Printed: 09/22/2022 4:29:33 PM rptGLGenRptReport: 2021.4.31 Page: 1



Tuition-Spec. Ed-Private Out o1010.00000.0000.000.55650 $68,014.00 $0.00 $0.00 $68,014.00 $0.00 $68,014.00 100.00%
Travel Reimbursement1010.00000.0000.000.55800 $14,500.00 $153.84 $461.52 $14,038.48 $1,538.48 $12,500.00 86.21%
ADULT EDUCATION1010.00000.0000.000.55910 $28,000.00 $0.00 $29,593.00 ($1,593.00) $0.00 ($1,593.00) -5.69%
General Supplies1010.00000.0000.000.56100 $62,645.00 $18,854.74 $37,051.95 $25,593.05 $3,097.26 $22,495.79 35.91%
Instructional Supplies1010.00000.0000.000.56110 $66,940.00 $20,848.67 $44,100.06 $22,839.94 $7,161.08 $15,678.86 23.42%
Admin Supplies1010.00000.0000.000.56120 $25,135.00 $2,855.45 $8,140.32 $16,994.68 $3,069.07 $13,925.61 55.40%
Electricity1010.00000.0000.000.56220 $89,547.00 $3,896.50 $8,047.67 $81,499.33 $68,992.33 $12,507.00 13.97%
Propane Gas1010.00000.0000.000.56230 $1,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 100.00%
Fuel Oil1010.00000.0000.000.56240 $96,663.00 $0.00 $0.00 $96,663.00 $0.00 $96,663.00 100.00%
Gasoline/Diesel1010.00000.0000.000.56260 $93,176.00 $6,491.19 $6,223.11 $86,952.89 $72,308.81 $14,644.08 15.72%
Books1010.00000.0000.000.56400 $5,500.00 $166.61 $485.06 $5,014.94 $991.63 $4,023.31 73.15%
Textbooks1010.00000.0000.000.56410 $46,125.00 $6,158.69 $23,902.12 $22,222.88 $1,951.51 $20,271.37 43.95%
Library Books1010.00000.0000.000.56420 $6,635.00 $0.00 $566.20 $6,068.80 $219.03 $5,849.77 88.17%
Periodicals1010.00000.0000.000.56430 $2,723.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,723.00 $76.50 $2,646.50 97.19%
Supplies - Technology Related1010.00000.0000.000.56500 $5,000.00 $0.00 $81.30 $4,918.70 $0.00 $4,918.70 98.37%
Other Supplies1010.00000.0000.000.56900 $20,580.00 $0.00 $398.72 $20,181.28 $164.10 $20,017.18 97.27%
Instructional Equipment1010.00000.0000.000.57345 $68,452.00 $38.02 $1,996.35 $66,455.65 $384.74 $66,070.91 96.52%
Technology Software1010.00000.0000.000.57350 $31,340.00 $0.00 $0.00 $31,340.00 $0.00 $31,340.00 100.00%
Dues and Fees1010.00000.0000.000.58100 $34,195.00 $1,836.42 $14,313.42 $19,881.58 $3,870.00 $16,011.58 46.82%
Contingency1010.00000.0000.000.59140 $12,604.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12,604.00 $0.00 $12,604.00 100.00%

End of Report

$20,540,776.00 $1,509,121.39 $3,807,663.01 $16,733,112.99 $13,622,959.85 $3,110,153.14Grand Total: 15.14%

Brooklyn Board of Education

Account Number

FY23 Budget Expense Summary by Object 9/1/2022From Date:
Fiscal Year:   2022-2023

9/30/2022To Date:

GL Budget Range To Date YTD Balance Encumbrance Budget Balance % Bud

Print accounts with zero balanceInclude pre encumbrance

Description

Filter Encumbrance Detail by Date RangeSubtotal by Collapse Mask
Exclude Inactive Accounts with zero balance

Printed: 09/22/2022 4:29:33 PM rptGLGenRptReport: 2021.4.31 Page: 2



1010 General Fund Brooklyn BOE Expenditure Report Fiscal Year 2022-2023 YTD Through Sept 22 2022

9/22/2022  1

Adopted Adjusted Adj. v Expense

Acct Account Name  Budget 22-23 Transfers  Budget 22-23 Ytd Expended Encumbered Total Exp/Encum Balance % Exp/Encum
1100 ADMINISTRATORS SALARY $821,699) $0 $821,699 $191,931) $639,769) $831,699) ($10,000) 101.22%
1103 SUBSTITUTE TEACHERS $95,000) $0 $95,000 $420) $0) $420) $94,580) 0.44%
1104 SUBSTITUTE PARAPROFESSIONALS $20,000) $0 $20,000 $587) $0) $587) $19,413) 2.93%
1105 SALARIES- INTERN SUPPORT STAFF $0) $0 $0 $1,160) $0) $1,160) ($1,160)
1110 SUPPORT STAFF (SEC., CUST., NURSE) $1,128,075) $0 $1,128,075 $193,068) $947,819) $1,140,887) ($12,812) 101.14%
1111 TEACHERS $5,485,358) $0 $5,485,358 $632,649) $4,940,557) $5,573,206) ($87,848) 101.60%
1112 PARAPROFESSIONALS $1,110,808) $0 $1,110,808 $52,240) $985,990) $1,038,230) $72,578) 93.47%
1119 ESY TEACHERS $5,760) $0 $5,760 $5,793) $0) $5,793) ($33) 100.56%
1129 ESY PARAPROFESSIONALS $17,280) $0 $17,280 $16,364) $0) $16,364) $916) 94.70%
1130 CUSTODIAL OVERTIME $2,000) $0 $2,000 $1,735) $0) $1,735) $265) 86.75%
1151 STIPENDS $53,690) $0 $53,690 $0) $0) $0) $53,690) 0.00%
1152 TECHNOLOGY (SUMMER) $7,500) $0 $7,500 $2,659) $0) $2,659) $4,841) 35.45%
1000 Total Salaries $8,747,170) $0 $8,747,170 $1,098,604) $7,514,135) $8,612,740) $134,430) 98.46%

2110 HEALTH INSURANCE $1,774,190) $0 $1,774,190 $535,820) $1,389,262) $1,925,082) ($150,892) 108.50%
2115 DENTAL INSURANCE $104,410) $0 $104,410 $27,344) $72,016) $99,360) $5,050) 95.16%
2120 H.S.A. CONTRIBUTIONS $193,750) $0 $193,750 $79,896) $80,490) $160,386) $33,364) 82.78%
2200 FICA/MEDICARE $286,086) $0 $286,086 $34,408) $234,679) $269,087) $16,999) 94.06%
2300 PENSION/RETIREMENT $266,828) $0 $266,828 $256,828) $0) $256,828) $10,000) 96.25%
2510 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT $15,000) $0 $15,000 $4,799) $0) $4,799) $10,201) 31.99%
2600 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION $35,000) $0 $35,000 $0) $0) $0) $35,000) 0.00%
2700 WORKERS COMPENSATION $85,943) $0 $85,943 $42,964) $42,965) $85,928) $15) 99.98%
2800 LIFE INSURANCE $19,293) $0 $19,293 $6,018) $12,593) $18,611) $682) 96.47%
2000 Total Benefits $2,780,500) $0 $2,780,500 $988,077) $1,832,005) $2,820,081) ($39,581) 101.42%

3000 INS CLAIM - LIGHTNING STRIKE $0) $0 $0 $3,858) $0) $3,858) ($3,858)
3020 BOARD OF ED - LEGAL $25,000) $0 $25,000 $7,519) $12,482) $20,000) $5,000) 80.00%
3200 PROFESSIONAL ED SERVICES $189,585) $0 $189,585 $68,970) $1,484) $70,454) $119,131) 37.16%
3230 PUPIL SERVICES $2,500) $0 $2,500 $0) $0) $0) $2,500) 0.00%
3400 OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $45,800) $0 $45,800 $4,548) $13,292) $17,840) $27,960) 38.95%
3410 AUDIT $28,465) $0 $28,465 $4,000) $11,965) $15,965) $12,500) 56.09%
3500 TECHNICAL SERVICES $32,800) $0 $32,800 $14,005) $9,630) $23,635) $9,165) 0.00%
3520 OTHER TECHNICAL SERVICES $5,475) $0 $5,475 $0) $0) $0) $5,475) 0.00%
3540 SPORTS OFFICIALS $5,000) $0 $5,000 $0) $0) $0) $5,000) 0.00%
3000 Total Prof. Services $334,625) $0 $334,625 $102,900 $48,853) $151,752) $182,873) 45.35%

4101 REFUSE REMOVAL $15,000) $0 $15,000 $2,944) $9,164) $12,108) $2,892) 80.72%
4300 EQUIPMENT REPAIRS $22,000) $0 $22,000 $0) $1,324) $1,324) $20,676) 6.02%
4301 BUILDING MAINTENANCE $40,000) $0 $40,000 $5,543) $3,786) $9,329) $30,672) 23.32%
4302 FIRE/SECURITY MAINTENANCE $16,500) $0 $16,500 $10,393) $4,760) $15,153) $1,347) 91.83%
4303 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE $17,000) $0 $17,000 $2,819) $2,621) $5,440) $11,560) 32.00%
4320 TECHNOLOGY RELATED REPAIRS $6,000) $0 $6,000 $528) $0) $528) $5,472) 8.81%
4411 WATER/SEWER $27,836) $0 $27,836 $260) $0) $260) $27,576) 0.93%
4430 RENTAL OF EQUIPMENT - COPIERS $58,000) $0 $58,000 $6,854) $33,972) $40,826) $17,174) 70.39%
4000 Total Contracted Services $202,336) $0 $202,336 $29,341) $55,627) $84,967) $117,369) 41.99%



1010 General Fund Brooklyn BOE Expenditure Report Fiscal Year 2022-2023 YTD Through Sept 22 2022

9/22/2022  2

Adopted Adjusted Adj. v Expense

Acct Account Name  Budget 22-23 Transfers  Budget 22-23 Ytd Expended Encumbered Total Exp/Encum Balance % Exp/Encum

5100 TRANSPORTATION-REGULAR $781,333) $0 $781,333 $8,606) $741,195) $749,801) $31,532) 95.96%
5110 TRANSPORTATION-SPECIAL ED $227,424) $0 $227,424 $2,960) $161,920) $164,880) $62,544) 72.50%
5130 TRANSPORTATION-ESY $39,661) $0 $39,661 $27,556) $0) $27,556) $12,105) 69.48%
5150 TRANSPORTATION-FIELD TRIPS/ATHLETIC $26,400) $0 $26,400 $0) $0) $0) $26,400) 0.00%
5200 LIABILITY INSURANCE $74,753) $0 $74,753 $37,374) $37,378) $74,752) $1) 100.00%
5300 COMMUNICATIONS $12,440) $0 $12,440 $2,214) $10,622) $12,836) ($396) 103.19%
5301 POSTAGE $3,300) $0 $3,300 $2,234) $246) $2,480) $820) 75.16%
5400 ADVERTISING $6,950) $0 $6,950 $7,064) $0) $7,064) ($114) 101.64%
5600 TUITION-HIGH SCHOOL $4,682,351) $0 $4,682,351 $1,034,997) $2,107,513) $3,142,511) $1,539,841) 67.11%
5610 TUITION-VO AG $28,960) $0 $28,960 $0) $0) $0) $28,960) 0.00%
5630 TUITION-SPECIAL ED PRIVATE $921,151) $0 $921,151 $82,047) $482,883) $564,930) $356,221) 61.33%
5640 TUITION-SPECIAL ED PUBLIC IN STATE $892,148) $0 $892,148 $208,329) $466,758) $675,087) $217,061) 75.67%
5650 TUITION-SPECIAL ED PRIVATE OUT OF STATE $68,014) $68,014 $0) $0)
5800 TRAVEL $14,500) $0 $14,500 $462) $1,538) $2,000) $12,500) 13.79%
5910 ADULT EDUCATION $28,000) $0 $28,000 $29,593) $0) $29,593) ($1,593) 105.69%
5000 Total Other Services $7,807,385) $0 $7,807,385 $1,443,436) $4,010,054) $5,453,490) $2,285,881) 69.85%

6100 GENERAL SUPPLIES $62,645) $0 $62,645 $37,052) $3,097) $40,149) $22,496) 64.09%
6110 INSTRUCTIONAL SUPPLIES $66,940) $0 $66,940 $44,100) $7,161) $51,261) $15,679) 76.58%
6120 ADMIN SUPPLIES $25,135) $0 $25,135 $8,140) $3,069) $11,209) $13,926) 44.60%
6220 ELECTRICITY $89,547) $0 $89,547 $8,048) $68,992) $77,040) $12,507) 86.03%
6230 PROPANE GAS $1,500) $0 $1,500 $0) $0) $0) $1,500) 0.00%
6240 FUEL OIL $96,663) $0 $96,663 $0) $0) $0) $96,663) 0.00%
6260 GASOLINE/DIESEL $93,176) $0 $93,176 $6,223) $72,309) $78,532) $14,644) 84.28%
6400 BOOKS $5,500) $0 $5,500 $485) $992) $1,477) $4,023) 26.85%
6410 TEXTBOOKS $46,125) $0 $46,125 $23,902) $1,952) $23,902) $22,223) 51.82%
6420 LIBRARY BOOKS $6,635) $0 $6,635 $566) $219) $785) $5,850) 11.83%
6430 PERIODICALS $2,723) $0 $2,723 $0) $77) $77) $2,647) 2.81%
6500 TECHNOLOGY SUPPLIES $5,000) $0 $5,000 $81) $0) $81) $4,919) 0.00%
6900 OTHER SUPPLIES $20,580) $0 $20,580 $399) $164) $563) $20,017) 2.73%
6000 Total Supplies $522,169) $0 $522,169 $128,997) $158,031) $285,076) $237,093) 54.59%

7345 INSTRUCTIONAL EQUIPMENT $68,452) $0 $68,452 $1,996) $385) $2,381) $66,071) 0.00%
7350 TECHNOLOGY SOFTWARE $31,340) $31,340 $0) $0)
7000 Total Equipment $99,792) $0) $99,792) $1,996) $385) $2,381) $66,071) $0)

8100 DUES & FEES $34,195) $0 $34,195 $14,313) $3,870) $18,183) $16,012) 53.18%
8000 Total Dues & Fees $34,195) $0 $34,195 $14,313) $3,870) $18,183) $16,012) 53.18%

9140 CONTINGENCY $12,604) $0 $12,604 $0) $0) $0) $12,604) 0.00%
9000 Total Other $12,604) $0 $12,604 $0) $0) $0) $12,604) 0.00%

1010 Total General Fund $20,540,776) $0) $20,540,776) $3,807,663) $13,622,960) $17,428,671) $3,012,751) 84.85%



Brooklyn Board of Education Transfer Request 2022-2023 Budget 9/28/2022

FROM TO

Account # Description Amount Account # Description Amount
1010.01901.2410.100.55300 TELEPHONE - BES $1,500.00 1010.01999.2410.100.55300 TELEPHONE-PRINCIPAL'S OFFICE $1,500.00

Move budget from BES to District Wide Move from BES to District Wide

1010.01999.2140.200.51111 SALARY - PSYCHOLOGIST-SP.ED. $23,373.00 1010.01999.2190.200.51105 Salaries- Social Worker Intern $23,373.00
Created New Account

$24,873.00 $24,873.00



96.48% 97.77%

-1.29%

98.29% 98.24%

0.05%

-20.00%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

BES 2021 Full Day Absence BES 2022 Full Day Absence Difference +/- BMS 2021 Full Day Absence BMS 2022 Full Day Absence Difference +/-

September Staff Attendance - Full Day Absences



96.92%
98.34%

-1.42%

96.88%
98.76%

-1.88%

-20.00%

0.00%

20.00%

40.00%

60.00%

80.00%

100.00%

120.00%

BES 2021 Partial Absence BES 2022 Partial Absence Difference +/- BMS 2021 Partial Absence BMS 2022 Partial Absence Difference +/-

September Staff Attendance -Partial Absences



BROOKLYN’S BEST

Brooklyn Elementary School

● We had wonderful participation at the Back to School BBQ and Open House. Thank you to our
PTO for hosting such an amazing night!

● Implementation of new PBIS system (PD for all staff, expectation stations, voice levels, give me
5, staff handing out tickets for BEAR behavior, first shopping day & monthly drawing at end of
month)

● Kinder Camp was well attended by our incoming Kindergarten students and families.  This year
we had 13 community organizations attend to share information about how their organizations
can assist families and students.  The organizations that attended were the Brooklyn Public
Library, Brooklyn Little League/KBMF, Brooklyn PTO, Brooklyn Soccer, Carelot, Brooklyn Cub
Scouts, ELL Program Eastconn, Green Valley Girl Scout Service Unit, Jewett City Bank,
Northeast District Department of Health , Northeast Early Childhood Council, United Services,
and Village Green

● Mrs. Gatlin created a wonderful display for Dot Day.  The children and staff loved seeing the
student art work throughout the hallways.

Brooklyn Middle School

● We had a successful Principal Advisory meeting with 6 parents and 5 staff members in
attendance.

● Thank you to Mrs. Kerr for planning and organizing a High School Choice Fair which was well
attended by families and schools.

● Great start to our fall athletic season.
● We are looking forward to the Ribbon Cutting event on Wednesday, September 28th.
● Our 8th-grade students enjoyed a visit to Woodstock Academy.
● It has been a smooth start to the new school year and our new staff has done a nice job getting

to know students, staff and families.
● We celebrated “Start With Hello Week” with activities during lunches for students to interact and

recognize peers and staff for positive support.

























































































1

BMS Grade 5 School Climate Survey Student Responses 2021-2022  Pages 1-15
BMS Grades 6-8 School Climate Survey Student Responses 2021-2022 Pages 15-30

BES Grades 3-4 School Climate Survey Student Responses Pages 31-45



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14

BMS Grades 6-8 School Climate Survey Responses 2021-2022



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31

BES Grades 3-4 School Climate Survey Responses 2021-2022



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



1

BMS Parent Survey 2021-2022, Pg 1-12
BES Parent Survey 2021-2022, Pg 13-27

BMS Parent Survey 2021-2022



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13

BES Parent Survey 2021-2022



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



1

BMS Staff Climate Survey Responses 2021-2022, Pg 1-18
BES Staff Climate Survey Responses 2021-2022, Pg 19-36

BMS Staff Climate Survey Responses 2021-2022



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19

BES Staff Climate Survey Responses 2021-2022



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36











8th Grade Trip options provided in survey

*Please note, Nature's Classroom would be willing to accommodate refunds for any students
who test positive for COVID before the trip and if the ENTIRE trip for BMS is canceled due to
COVID there will be refunds issued*

Option 1- Nature's Classroom 3 Days, 2 Nights
Price: $400.00

Nature’s Classroom is a residential environmental education program offering immersive
programming tailored to the needs of each group. Days include field group hikes, low ropes
course & other exploring activities, team building challenges, special interest classes (student
choice), free time to play, fishing, sports, evening activities (science fair, night experience,
Thursday Night Live), 3 meals & 1 snack a day (can meet any dietary restriction), cabins include
individual beds in a bunk style, up to 18 students and 3 adults per cabin.

Option 2- Nature's Classroom 4 Days, 3 Nights with Whale Watch Excursion
Price: $530.00

Same as information above PLUS 1 extra day. This would include an excursion to Providence
town for a 2 hour Whale Watching experience as well as an additional night of programming!!

Option 3- Washington D.C. & Morning in Philadelphia 3 Days, 2 Nights
Price: $650.00

Trip Includes:
Round Trip Motor-coach buses
2-Nights Hotel, Wyndham College Park North/Washington DC- Hotel will have 4 students
rooming together, 2 queen beds
7 Meals: 2 Breakfasts | 3 Lunches (1 cash, 1 voucher, 1 box meal) | 2 Dinners (1 voucher, 1
dinner theatre)
Visit to Arlington Cemetery
Illumination Tour of DC (2 guides)
Toby’s Dinner Theatre (Performance of “Grease”)
Admission to the National Constitution Center (Freedom Rising)
2 Security Officers on duty for 2 nights at the hotel


